
 

Monitoring Officer 
Christopher Potter 
 
County Hall, Newport, Isle of Wight PO30 1UD 
Telephone (01983) 821000 
 

 

 

 

To observe the meeting as a member of the public/press please use 
the link provided . This link will be made available 24 hours prior to 
start of the meeting. Please ensure you access the meeting in good 
time. Guidance on how to access the public meeting can be found 
HERE. Committee members and pre-arranged attendees will be 
contacted by Democratic Services to supply the appropriate link to 
participate in the meeting. 
 

Details of this and other Council committee meetings can be viewed on the 
Isle of Wight Council’s Committee website. This information may 
be available in alternative formats on request. 
 

 

 
 

Name of meeting LOCAL OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD 

Date THURSDAY 11 FEBRUARY 2021 

Time 12.00 PM 

Venue VIRTUAL (MS TEAMS) 

Members of the 
committee 

Cllrs D Stewart (Chairman), S Hutchinson, C Mosdell and 
G Peace 

 Democratic Services Officer: Jayne Tyler 
jayne.tyler@iow.gov.uk 

 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 To confirm as a true record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2021. 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To invite Members to declare any interest they might have in the matters on the 

agenda. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://www.iow.gov.uk/azservices/documents/1457-Branded-Meeting-guidance-non-commitee-and-public-May-2020.pdf
https://iow.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


3. Public Question Time - 15 Minutes Maximum   
 
 Questions must be put including the name and address of the questioner by 

delivery in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic Services at 
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk, no later than two clear working days before the 
start of the meeting. Therefore the deadline for written questions will be 8 
February 2021. 
 

4. Reports of the Local Outbreak Engagement Board   
 
 (a) Update on current situation   

 
  IOW Public Health Data 

 
 (b) Actions taken and required   

 
  To receive an update from the Director of Public Health. 

 
 (c) Update on Communications Activity   

 
  To receive an update from the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief 

Strategy Officer. 
 

5. Members' Question Time   
 
 A question must be submitted in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic 

Services no later than 12 Noon on Tuesday, 9 February 2021. 
 

 
CHRISTOPHER POTTER 

Monitoring Officer 
Wednesday, 3 February 2021 

 

Page 2

mailto:democratic.services@iow.gov.uk
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Council/transparency/Our-Community1/JSNA-Live-Well-Healthy-Communities/COVID-19-Coronavirus-Data


 
Interests 
 

If there is a matter on this agenda which may relate to an interest you or your partner or 
spouse has or one you have disclosed in your register of interests, you must declare your 
interest before the matter is discussed or when your interest becomes apparent.  If the 
matter relates to an interest in your register of pecuniary interests then you must take no 
part in its consideration and you must leave the room for that item. Should you wish to 
participate as a member of the public to express your views where public speaking is 
allowed under the Council’s normal procedures, then you will need to seek a dispensation 
to do so. Dispensations are considered by the Monitoring Officer following the submission 
of a written request. Dispensations may take up to 2 weeks to be granted.  
 
Members are reminded that it is a requirement of the Code of Conduct that they should 
also keep their written Register of Interests up to date.  Any changes to the interests 
recorded on that form should be made as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 28 
days of the change.  A change would be necessary if, for example, your employment 
changes, you move house or acquire any new property or land.   
 
If you require more guidance on the Code of Conduct or are unsure whether you need to 
record an interest on the written register you should take advice from the Monitoring 
Officer – Christopher Potter on (01983) 821000, email christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk, or 
Deputy Monitoring Officer - Justin Thorne on (01983) 821000, 
email justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk. 
 

 
Notice of recording 

 
Please note that all meetings that are open to the public and press may be filmed or 
recorded and/or commented on online by the council or any member of the public or press. 
However, this activity must not disrupt the meeting, and if it does you will be asked to stop 
and possibly to leave the meeting. This meeting may also be filmed for live and 
subsequent broadcast (except any part of the meeting from which the press and public are 
excluded).  
 
If you wish to record, film or photograph the council meeting or if you believe that being 
filmed or recorded would pose a risk to the safety of you or others then please speak with 
the democratic services officer prior to that start of  the meeting. Their contact details are 
on the agenda papers. 
 
If the press and public are excluded for part of a meeting because confidential or exempt 
information is likely to be disclosed, there is no right to record that part of the meeting. All 
recording and filming equipment must be removed from the meeting room when the public 
and press are excluded. 
 
If you require further information please see the council guide to reporting on council 
meetings which can be found at 
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note  
 
All information that is recorded by the council is held in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  For further information please contact Democratic Services at 
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk  

Page 3

mailto:christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk
mailto:justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note
mailto:democratic.services@iow.gov.uk


Arrangements for Submitting Oral Questions at Meetings of Council and Cabinet:  
 
Due to Coronavirus, it is not possible to ask an oral question in person, all questions 
must be submitted in writing by the date shown on the agenda please see Part 4B - 
Procedure rules Governing how Full Council, Cabinet, Committees, Sub-Committees 
and Boards Operate – Remote Meetings 
 

Page 4

https://iow.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s1974/PART%204B%20-%20Remote%20Meetings.pdf


 

 

 

 

 
1 

 

 

Name of meeting LOCAL OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD 

Date and Time THURSDAY 14 JANUARY 2021 COMMENCING AT 12.00 
PM 

Venue VIRTUAL (MS TEAMS) 

Present Cllrs D Stewart (Chairman), S Hutchinson, C Mosdell and 
G Peace 

Officers Present S Bryant, J Metcalfe, W Perera 

 
18. Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2020 be confirmed. 
 

19. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations declared at this stage. 
 

20. Public Question Time - 15 Minutes Maximum  
 
Sam McLuckie of Cowes submitted a written question regarding the safe working 
conditions for Special Education Needs teachers. (PQ 08/21) 
 
Dominic Coughlin of Ryde submitted a written question regarding the number of 
positive cases resulting from testing. (PQ 09/21) 
 

21. Reports of the Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 
21.1 Update on current situation  
 
The Director for Public Health (DPH) provided the Board with a presentation, based 
on the data provided that morning. 
 
A map of where we were across the county was shown, for week 52, the week just 
prior to Christmas, and then moving into week 53 there was a dramatic change and 
increase in rates across the whole country, the South East was where a large 
increase was seen moving west and north.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
2 

 

Across Hampshire, Southampton and Isle of Wight, rates were higher than when 
looking at the more local area it had a rate of 1,171 per 100,000 which had 
dramatically risen, although it was stabilising a little bit and the rate of increase was 
slowing down. Rates across ceremonial Hampshire, the 4 upper tier local authorities 
in our local resilience area (Portsmouth, Southampton, Isle of Wight and Hampshire) 
the rates across the whole of the pandemic where we are, the Isle of Wight still had 
low rates per 100,000, although increasing rapidly, the Isle of Wight was still in a 
positive position overall.  
 
The board were advised that comparing the seven day rates around the region the 
first wave on the Isle of Wight was quite small compared to now, there was an 
increase in the spread of the virus, however it seemed to be slowing down slightly 
which was really positive.  
 
The over 60’s rates were closely monitored as that age group were known to be 
more seriously ill, and end up in hospital, all age bands were monitored across the 
Isle of Wight. Also the rate in working age population was monitored as they were 
more likely to catch covid-19.  
 
The trend was going up again with ventilator beds we know that the numbers are 
smaller so they fluctuate but we know we have seen a huge increase since the 
beginning of October. An increase in cases across our systems with people 
requiring mechanical ventilation for Covid. It’s a busy position but we want to protect 
our population and our hospitals, and nationally that’s why a lot of work was going 
on around lockdown as there had been an increase in patients across the country 
requiring urgent action to be taken.  
 
we know that 96-97% of the new variant and this showed that it doesn’t have 
increased disease severity, the board were asked to remember that it was quite a 
new variant. the South African variant was also being monitored, with a higher viral 
load, which may impact on the body and give worse outcomes. Work to prevent that 
coming into the country was ongoing.  
 
The board were incredibly concerned about the huge spikes seen here on the island 
and knew previous speculation about the very rapid changes that from when we 
were in tier one and they understood that at a number of reasons  that might have 
caused that for example: 

 commuter density on ferries,  

 that fact that we were in tier one,  

 perhaps everyone was more relaxed than they should have been, because 
they felt safer and therefore, they were mixing more.  

Speculation about students returning from other higher infected areas to the Island, 
second home owners and visitors. It was noted that, during the summer when there 
were a lot of visitors to the Island, there had been no increase that correlated to it. 
The DPH advised that the virus thrives on people mixing and people getting 
together, so we know that the more relaxed people are around those behaviours of 
social distancing, of hand hygiene and wearing a face covering that the virus is 
more likely to spread. This new variant was 70% more transmissible. With anything 
is if there was any lapse in those two metres, or the not wearing of a face covering it 
is much more likely to spread. Students around the country had been tested before 

Page 6



 
3 

 

they came home and it is understood that people who travel backwards and 
forwards for from the Island to the mainland and from the mainland to the Island, 
was increasing that spread, the more people that moved around the more likely, 
particularly this new variant is spreading. 
 
The board acknowledged that the Isle of Wight Council’s Environmental Health team 
in conjunction with local police had issued their first fixed penalty notice, against a 
local business. The individuals had been issued with fixed penalty notices of 
£1000.00 each and in conjunction with that people who were also on the premises 
had been issued with fixed penalty notices by police.  
 
The Chief Executive advised that the Council had introduced covid support officers 
to support the Environmental Health teams, Covid ambassadors had been used to 
spread the messages far and wide about hands-face-space and how important it 
was for people to stay apart. People would resolve the pandemic and whilst the 
vaccination was coming in, it was still about individual behaviours and personal 
responsibility that would make the biggest difference and would help us gain control 
of the rates of cases on the Island, in the fastest possible ways. 
 
It was noted that we needed to keep people safe in other ways, not just from Covid, 
it’s the Winter season, and the worst time of the season for the hospital we had to 
protect and look after our most vulnerable from the ordinary winter pressures and 
problems that they have to deal with. There were very few people on the Isle of 
Wight now, who don’t know somebody who has caught Covid and there were some 
people who know people who have died on the Isle of Wight so we can’t be strong 
enough about that message.  
 
The Leader advised that following a national meeting, the Isle of Wight figures were 
being followed with interest and how they were being dealt with. 
 
21.2 Actions taken and required  
 
The Director of Public Health (DPH) advised that activities being undertaken, as a 
health protection board, council and partners, a number of outbreaks in different 
settings were being managed, these included care homes, individuals and schools. 
Support in these settings to further manage prevention of the spread of infection is 
being undertaken. 
 
The board were advised that there were lots of things going on with testing, a new 
local testing unit was now in place at the Medina leisure centre car park, this was to 
ensure that there was the right amount of testing for the Island, due to an increase 
in cases there was a need to make testing more available to residents, which had 
been successful. 
 
A programme was being developed with colleagues to look at community testing 
over a 6-week period. We were working closely with the department of health and 
social care and they had provided military planners to assist. We will look at how we 
do that to ensure that our front facing workers can be tested to make sure that those 
people who were required to go out to work can get tested. 
 

Page 7



 
4 

 

The board were informed that there was a lot of work going into reviewing the 
guidance and working with supermarkets and other places to help them embed 
behaviours that they needed within their organisations.  
 
The vaccination was in the first phase, vulnerable people, the over 80’s, health and 
social care settings and staff were included to prevent death and protect health and 
social care staff. The vaccination programme had changed, to administer the two 
doses further apart, to ensure as much immunity in our population as possible, it 
was noted that the first dose does not give full immunity. The Oxford vaccine is 
being rolled out on the Island and that doesn’t require these really low temperatures 
and makes it much easier to roll out in our community.  
 
The Leader provided an update from a Local Government meeting, gambling 
regulations were being reviewed, especially online gambling as there had been an 
increase since lockdown and the mental pressures that was reflecting. Domestic 
abuse was also discussed and he urged all people suffering any level of domestic 
abuse to get support. 
 
21.3 Update on Communications Activity  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive provided the board with a brief update on the activity 
around communications and engagement. The council continued to provide 
bespoke advice and guidance to businesses and stakeholders through the work of 
our regulatory services and other services within the council not least of which our 
commissioning services working with our care providers on the Island, who had a 
very good and strong working relationship in terms of providing advice and support 
to that sector of the market.  
 
Regulatory services and environmental health covid support officers had been 
visiting businesses and providing advice and guidance, Communication and 
engagement activity occurred across a range of channels that the council had 
available and where appropriate we continue to work with partner agencies to 
support communication.  In particular our partners within the IW NHS trust, the CCG 
and Police across the Island. 
  
The approach as a council had been one of providing factual content and updated 
information linked to Government announcements and supplemented with more 
emotive content about the impact that covid is having on the Island, work was being 
developed to enable people to describe and explain personal experiences of Covid 
and the impact it had on families and individuals. 
 
Currently we had a single clear message which was stay at home, and only 
undertake essential journeys. If we do have to go out then hands-space-face is 
behaviour should be observed, and the importance of making space for one another 
was stressed. This remained the most critical message that we needed to make, our 
behaviours as individuals was most important. 
 
We continued to provide information on the availability of our helpline, community 
support and the really good work that is undertaken in the community in terms of 
local community hubs and volunteers providing support to individuals. Access to 

Page 8



 
5 

 

testing had increased recently, and we continue to provide the message that if 
anybody had any symptoms, however low level they may feel that is, it is important 
to self-isolate and get a test.  
 
The business grant process and availability went live earlier in the week and there 
had already been a huge response to that in terms of applications for business 
grants. 
 
Advice and guidance to signpost mental health support services, domestic abuse 
support services as well as promoting online activities that individuals can access 
were being provided. The self-isolation toolkit was available and continued to be 
developed this may include things you might like to have in your cupboard, or have 
available for you at home, so that if the worse comes to the worse and you do 
contract covid you can get some low level support for yourself at home by being 
prepared. 
 
Concern was raised regarding the number of businesses that had to stay open who 
are providing services, although not technically classed as key workers. It was 
understood that some of the businesses on the Island that have stayed open in 
manufacturing were doing essential work to keep different parts of the world open, 
everything needs to be done to protect workers who had to go out to work in the 
community.  
 
The board asked if there was any information or confirmation that nasal sprays 
stops the virus from moving into your lungs and also stops anything you inhale from 
infecting other people, because the virus is wrapped in this spray, the DPH advised 
that he had not seen anything about this spray, and advised caution, we know this 
virus spreads through droplets from the mouth and nose, so actually we needed to 
prevent that spread, by stopping that transmission through to other people, Public 
Health England looked at the evidence on a very regular basis about what will 
prevent spread.  
 
The Leader advised that the helpline 823600 was available, we do not want our 
islanders to feel that they cannot turn to us for support in any form, He would 
thanked council staff and partners in relation to the media: 
 
• Isle of Wight Radio – tremendous support  
• Vectis Radio – for the community  
• The County Press  
• On the Wight  
• Island Echo 
• BBC  
• ITV 
• Other outlets  
 
social media users were, thanked for the excellent work they had been doing with 
us, hoping to be proven beneficial. 
 
The board recognised that there were some people who were key to keeping 
everyone going and protecting us from all the other dangers that might befall us at 

Page 9



 
6 

 

Winter. As we know, the hospital especially, the primary care and the GP’s come 
under significant pressure in Winter without covid. It was recognised that as a 
community we needed to support those people in the best possible way. The next 
stage was Lateral Flow Testing, work had been undertaken to help secure his for 
the Island.  
 

22. Members' Question Time  
 
There were no members questions raised. 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

Page 10


	Agenda
	1 Minutes

